A RESOLUTION AUTHORIZING EXECUTION OF THE 2023 – 2026 COLLECTIVE BARGAINING AGREEMENT BETWEEN THE VILLAGE OF BARRINGTON HILLS AND THE METROPOLITAN ALLIANCE OF POLICE BARRINGTON HILLS POLICE UNION #576

WHEREAS, the Village of Barrington Hills (the "Village") is a home-rule municipality pursuant to Article VII, Section 6, of the Constitution of the State of Illinois, and as such is authorized to take all reasonable actions pertaining to its affairs in accordance therewith; and

WHEREAS, the Village and the Metropolitan Alliance of Police, Barrington Hills Police Union #576 have engaged in negotiations which have resulted in tentative agreement over the terms of a four-year Collective Bargaining Agreement setting forth the terms of employment with Barrington Hills Police Union #576, as set forth in the Agreement attached hereto and incorporated herein by reference as Exhibit A.

NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED by the President and Board of Trustees of the Village of Barrington Hills, a home rule community located in the Counties of Cook, Kane, Lake and McHenry, Illinois, as follows:

SECTION ONE: The recitals set forth above are incorporated herein and made a part hereof.

SECTION TWO: The Village President is authorized to execute the 2023 – 2026 Collective Bargaining Agreement with the Metropolitan Alliance of Police, Barrington Hills Police Union #576, in the form attached hereto as Exhibit A, upon final agreement to all terms set forth therein.

<u>SECTION THREE:</u> This Resolution shall take effect immediately upon its passage and approval as provided by law.

Aves:

5 (Hills, Riff, Croll, Konicek, Cecola)

Nays:

Λ

Absent:

2 (Strauss, Ekstrom)

PASSED AND APPROVED by the President and Board of Trustees of the Village of Barrington Hills, Illinois, this 27th day of February, 2023.

APPROVED:

Village President

ATTEST:

Village Clerk

EXHIBIT A

Collective Bargaining Agreement

Between

The Village of Barrington Hills

And

Metropolitan Alliance of Police Barrington Hills Police Union # 576

2023 to 2026

TABLE OF CONTENTS

PREAMBLE	1
ARTICLE I RECOGNITION	1
Section 1.1 Recognition of the Bargaining Agent	1
Section 1.2 Part-Time Police Officers	1
Section 1.3 No Subcontracting	2
Section 1.4 Definitions	2
ARTICLE II MANAGEMENT RIGHTS	2
Section 2.1 Management Rights	2
ARTICLE III UNION SECURITY	3
Section 3.1 Fair Share	3
Section 3.2 Dues Deductions	3
Section 3.3 Indemnification	3
Section 3.4 Bulletin Board	4
Section 3.5 Union Business	4
Section 3.6 Union Representatives	4
ARTICLE IV NO STRIKE, NO LOCKOUT	4
Section 4.1 No Strike	4
Section 4.2 No Lockout	4
ARTICLE V SENIORITY, LAYOFF AND RECALL	4
Section 5.1 Layoff and Recall	4
Section 5.2 Definition of Seniority	5
Section 5.3 Seniority Lists	5
Section 5.4 Purpose of Seniority	5
Section 5.5 Termination of Seniority	5
ARTICLE VI GRIEVANCE PROCEDURE	6
Section 6.1 Definition of Grievance	6
Section 6.2 Grievance Procedure	6
Section 6.3 Time Limits	8
ARTICLE VII HOURS OF WORK AND OVERTIME	8
Section 7.1 Purpose	8
Section 7.2 Shift Schedule	8
Section 7.3 Shift Selection and Assignment	9
Section 7.4 Normal Work Schedule	9
Section 7.5 Overtime Pay	10
Section 7.6 Compensatory Time	10
Section 7.7 Overtime Scheduling	10
Section 7.8 Court Time	11

Section 7.	.9 Call-Out Pay	11
Section 7.	.10 Longevity	11
Section 7.	.11 Extra Details	12
Section 7.	.12 Training Sessions	12
Section 7.	.13 No Pyramiding	12
ARTICLE V	/III VACATION	12
Section 8.	1 Eligibility and Allowances	12
Section 8.	.2 Vacation Pay	13
Section 8.	3 Vacation Scheduling	13
Section 8.	.4 Vacation Carryover	14
ARTICLE I	X HOLIDAYS	1 4
Section 9	1 Holidays	14
Section 9	2 Holiday Ronk	14
Section 9	2 Holiday Bank	15
Beenon 7.	3 Holiday Pay	15
ARTICLE X	INSURANCE	10
Section 10	0.1 Insurance	10
Section 10	0.2 Life Insurance	10
Section 10	0.3 Long Term Disability Benefit	10
Section 10	0.4 Additional Insurance Benefits	10
Section 16	0.5 Waiver of Health and/or Dental Insurance	16
Section 10	0.6 Terms of Insurance Policies to Govern	16
Section 10	o.o Terms of histitatice Folicies to Govern	16
ARTICLE X	I SICK LEAVE	17
Section 11	1.1 Purpose	17
Section 11	1.2 Sick Leave Accrual	17
Section 11	1.3 Sick Leave Usage	17
Section 11	1.4 Sick Leave Separation Incentive	19
	The state of the s	10
ARTICLE X	III LEAVE OF ABSENCE	19
Section 12	2.1 Leave Without Pay	19
Section 12	2.2 Bereavement Leave	19
Section 12	2.3 Jury Leave	$\frac{1}{20}$
Section 12	2.4 Administrative Leave	$\frac{20}{20}$
Section 12	2.5 Military Leave	$\frac{20}{20}$
Section 12	2.6 Maternity/Paternity Leave	$\frac{20}{20}$
Section 12	2.7 Application for Leave	$\frac{20}{20}$
		20
ARTICLE X	III WAGES	21
Section 13	3.1 Wage Schedule	21
Section 13	3.2 Special Assignment Compensation	$\frac{-1}{21}$
Section 13	3.3 Officer In Charge Compensation.	- · 22
Section 13	3.4 Holiday Bonus	22
ARTICLE X	IV DISCIPLINE	22

Section 14.1 Discipline
Section 14.2 Surveillance of Employees
Section 14.3 Fitness for Duty
ARTICLE XV MISCELLANEOUS PROVISIONS
Section 15.1 Ratification and Amendment
Section 15.2 No Discrimination
Section 15.3 Reimbursement for Expenses 24
Section 15.4 Outside Employment
Section 15.5 Probationary Period
Section 15.6 Tuition Reimbursement
Section 15.7 Compensation Upon Separation 27
Section 15.8 Wellness Incentive Program
ARTICLE XVI UNIFORMS27
Section 16.1 Original Issue of Equipment.
Section 16.2 Uniforms and Equipment
Section 16.3 Reimbursement for Destruction of Wristwatches, etc
Section 16.4 Threat Level IIIA Vests
ARTICLE XVII MAINTENANCE OF BENEFITS28
ARTICLE XVIII SAVINGS CLAUSE29
ARTICLE XIX ENTIRE AGREEMENT29
ARTICLE XX TERMINATION29
APPENDIX A WAGE SCHEDULE30
APPENDIX B SENIORITY LIST31
APPENDIX C EQUIPMENT LIST32
APPENDIX D DRUG AND ALCOHOL TESTING FOLLOWING AN OFFICER INVOLVED SHOOTING
MEMORANDUM OF AGREEMENT BETWEEN THE METROPOLITAN ALLIANCE OF POLICE AND THE VILLAGE OF BARRINGTON HILLS

PREAMBLE

This Agreement is made and entered into by and between the VILLAGE OF BARRINGTON HILLS (hereinafter referred to as the "Village" or the "Employer") and the METROPOLITAN ALLIANCE OF POLICE, BARRINGTON HILLS CHAPTER 576 (hereinafter collectively referred to as the "Union").

The purpose of this Agreement is to provide an orderly collective bargaining relationship between the Employer and the Union representing the employees in the bargaining unit, and to make clear the basic terms upon which such relationship depends. It is the intent of both the Employer and the Union to work together to provide and maintain satisfactory terms and conditions of employment, and to prevent as well as to adjust misunderstandings and grievances relating to employees' wages, hours and working conditions.

In consideration of the mutual promises, covenants and Agreement contained herein, the parties hereto, by their duly authorized representative and/or agents, do mutually covenant and agree as follows:

ARTICLE I RECOGNITION

Section 1.1 Recognition of the Bargaining Agent

The Village recognizes the Union as the sole and exclusive bargaining representative for the purpose of collective bargaining on any and all matters relating to wages, hours and all other terms and conditions of employment of all police officers in the bargaining unit certified on June 7, 2010, pursuant to Illinois Labor Relations Board case number S-RC-10-049. The bargaining unit shall include all full-time sworn employees of the Village of Barrington Hills Police Department in the following titles: Patrol Officer, Master Patrol Officer, Senior Patrol Officer, Investigator/Patrol Officer, including probationary officers.

Positions EXCLUDED from the above-described bargaining unit are all part-time police officers, all non-sworn personnel, all sworn police officers of the rank of sergeant and above, and all managerial, supervisory and confidential employees, as defined by the Illinois Public Labor Relations Act, as amended.

Section 1.2 Part-Time Police Officers

If the Village employs part-time police officers, who have been certified as police officers by the Illinois Law Enforcement Training Standards Board, to perform duties allowed by 65 ILCS 5/3.1-30-21, part-time police officers shall not be used to replace any members in the collective bargaining unit, i.e., to perform the normal hours of work of any current member of the collective bargaining unit. The Village agrees to offer overtime to part-time officers before mandating overtime to full-time police officers whenever practicable. Part-time police officers cannot hold a supervisory rank and cannot be a supervisor to any full-time police officer.

{00747182.DOC v. 1 }

There shall be no more than one part-time police officer employed at any one time for every three full-time bargaining unit police officers employed with the Village of Barrington Hills. No full-time police officer shall be subject to lay off until after all part-time police officers have been laid off. No part-time officer may be employed by the Village while any full-time police officer is subject to layoff.

Section 1.3 No Subcontracting

The Village shall not subcontract the basic law enforcement duties and responsibilities performed by bargaining unit members, provided that this provision shall not apply to any mutual aid and assistance agreements that the Village may have with other governmental entities.

Section 1.4 Definitions

For the purposes of this contract the following words are defined:

"Day" includes Saturdays, Sundays and holidays unless specifically excluded.

"Work day" shall refer to the officer's assigned shift or hours of work.

Pronouns "he, him, and his" shall refer to both males and females equally.

"Shall" as used in this agreement refers to the topic being compulsory.

"May" as used in this agreement refers to the topic being voluntary.

The term "police officer" or "employee" as used in this Agreement shall refer to full-time sworn police officers who are members of the bargaining unit.

Words shall have their common definition in Merriam-Webster Dictionary, unless specifically defined otherwise.

Schedule Software – The Department work schedule/payroll system.

ARTICLE II MANAGEMENT RIGHTS

Section 2.1 Management Rights

Except as specifically limited by the express provisions of this Agreement, the Village retains all legal rights to manage and direct the affairs of the Village in all its various aspects, and to manage and direct its police officers, including but not limited to the following: to hire, demote, suspend or discharge police officers for just cause; to plan, direct, control and determine the budget and all the operations, services, policies, practices and missions of the

{00747182.DOC v. 1 }

Village; to supervise and direct the working forces; to establish the qualifications for and to employ police officers; to deploy police officers both internally and externally to other police-related assignments; to schedule and assign work; to maintain a capable and efficient police force; to establish and eliminate specialty positions and to select personnel to fill them; to transfer and reassign police officers;; to assign overtime; to purchase goods and contract out services other than for bargaining unit work; to determine the methods, means, organization and number of personnel by which departmental operations and services shall be made or performed; to make, alter and enforce reasonable rules, regulations, orders, policies and procedures; to evaluate, promote or demote and to establish the standards for such promotions; to establish reasonable performance standards for police officers; to change or eliminate existing methods, practices, equipment or facilities or introduce new; to determine training needs and to assign police officers to training; to determine work hours (shift hours) and to change them from time to time; to determine and implement internal investigation procedures; to take any and all actions necessary to carry out the mission of the Village and the Police Department.

ARTICLE III UNION SECURITY

Section 3.1 Fair Share

If the Supreme Court's decision in *Janus v. AFSCME* is reversed, upon a written request submitted by the Union, the parties will meet to negotiate over a Union proposal to provide for fair share.

Section 3.2 Dues Deductions

Upon receipt of proper written authorization from a police officer, the Employer shall deduct 1/24th of each year's Union dues in the amount certified by the Treasurer of the Union from the pay of such police officer covered by this Agreement each pay period. Such money shall be submitted to the Metropolitan Alliance of Police within fifteen (15) days after the deductions have been made. The Union shall advise the Employer of any increase in dues in writing, at least twenty-one (21) days prior to its effective date. A copy of the authorization form is attached hereto.

Section 3.3 Indemnification

The Metropolitan Alliance of Police shall indemnify, defend, save and hold harmless the Village, its elected representatives, officers, administrators, agents and officers from and against any and all claims, demands, actions, complaints, suits or other forms of liability that arise out of or by reason of any action taken or not taken by the Village for the purpose of complying with the provisions of this Article, or in reliance on any written check off authorization furnished under any of such provisions, provided that the Village does not initiate or prosecute such action.

Section 3.4 Bulletin Board

The Village will make bulletin board space available in or proximate to the squad room for posting of Union notices. The Union shall limit its posting of notices and other materials to such bulletin board. The Union shall not use the bulletin board space for posting abusive or inflammatory or partisan political material. The size of the bulletin board shall not exceed eighteen (18) inches by twenty-four (24) inches.

Section 3.5 Union Business

Union officers holding the positions of President, Vice President and Secretary may conduct Union business while on approved meal and work breaks as defined by this Agreement.

Section 3.6 Union Representatives

The Union shall provide to the Village and keep current a written list of any designated official employee representatives who are authorized to deal with the Village on behalf of the bargaining unit.

ARTICLE IV NO STRIKE, NO LOCKOUT

Section 4.1 No Strike

Neither the Union nor any officers, agents or employees of the Union will call, initiate, institute, authorize, instigate, promote, sponsor, engage in, participate in or condone any strike or sympathy strike, which in any way results in the interruption or disruption of the operations of the Village, regardless of the reason for doing so. Each police officer that holds the position of officer or steward of the Union occupies a position of special trust and responsibility in maintaining and bringing about compliance with the provisions of this Article.

Section 4.2 No Lockout

The Village will not lockout any Police Officers during the term of this agreement as a result of a labor dispute with the Union.

ARTICLE V SENIORITY, LAYOFF AND RECALL

Section 5.1 Layoff and Recall

All layoffs will be determined on a seniority basis. Those police officers with the lowest amount of seniority may be temporarily laid-off in the event that the Employer is able to demonstrate financial necessity for said layoff. Employees who are laid off shall be recalled in inverse order of layoff for the first vacancy for which they are qualified. The Village agrees that it will lay off any and all part-time police officers before the layoff of any bargaining unit

{00747182.DOC v. 1 }

members. No part-time police officer will be employed by the Village while any bargaining unit member is on layoff. Notice of recall shall be made by a certified, return receipt letter with the obligation and responsibility of the employee to provide the Chief or designee with such employee's current mailing address. Employees returning from layoff shall have their seniority rights restored and shall be reinstated at the pay rate of the position classification that corresponds to their seniority.

Upon determination that a vacancy exists and there are police officers that have been furloughed due to a reduction-in-force, the police officers on furlough shall be recalled to fill such position and seniority will prevail in determining which furloughed police officer shall have the right to be re-employed if the Police Officer is otherwise qualified.

Section 5.2 Definition of Seniority

Seniority shall be determined as the police officer's continuous length of service as a police officer in the Department from the date of last hire as an employee. Time spent in the armed forces, on military leaves of absence, and authorized leaves not to exceed one year, and time lost due to duty related disability shall be included. In cases of employees hired on the same date, seniority shall be determined by the final scores from the eligibility list.

Section 5.3 Seniority Lists

A current up to date seniority list showing the names and length of service of each police officer shall be provided and posted by the Employer annually on a designated bulletin board by September 1st of each year. The Employer shall not be responsible for any errors in the aforementioned seniority list (or any other seniority list posted at various times throughout the year), unless such errors are brought, in writing, to the attention of the Employer by employees and/or the Union within twenty-one (21) calendar days after the list(s) is posted. The failure to challenge a seniority list during this twenty-one (21) calendar day challenge period does not preclude the Union and/or employees from challenging future seniority lists. The time line for filing a grievance regarding an employee's seniority shall begin on the day that the Employer responds to an employee or Union's challenge.

Section 5.4 Purpose of Seniority

Police officers shall be allowed preference according to seniority on all sections of this Agreement which specifically designate seniority as the determining factor.

Section 5.5 Termination of Seniority

A police officer shall not accumulate seniority rights upon separation from the Department due to dismissal, suspension time in excess of 30 continuous days, layoff or retirement. Full seniority rights shall be reinstated under the following conditions:

 A police officer retires due to disability and is later certified by the Police Pension Board to be capable of resuming his duties and is returned to work by the Chief of Police.

{00747182.DOC v. 1 }

- 2. A police officer is dismissed and later reinstated by a court of competent jurisdiction.
- 3. A police officer is separated due to layoff or reduction-in-force and is later reinstated under the conditions provided for in the Illinois State Statutes.

ARTICLE VI GRIEVANCE PROCEDURE

Section 6.1 Definition of Grievance

A grievance is defined as a dispute or difference of opinion arising under and during the term of this Agreement raised by a Bargaining Unit Member or fair share participant involving an alleged violation, misinterpretation or misapplication of this Agreement. Any matter involving discharge shall be deemed filed and advanced directly to the arbitration step of this grievance procedure.

Section 6.2 Grievance Procedure

Recognizing that grievances should be raised and settled promptly, a grievance must be raised by the affected Bargaining Unit Member and/or a Union Officer within fourteen (14) calendar days after the occurrence of the event giving rise to the grievance, or within fourteen (14) calendar days after the date when the police officer or the Union Officer should, using reasonable diligence, have become aware of the event giving rise to the grievance, in accord with the following procedure:

Step One: Supervisor

The Bargaining Unit Member shall give written notification of his grievance to his onduty non-bargaining unit supervisor. Such notification shall specifically state that the matter is a grievance under this Agreement and shall include a description of the event giving rise to the grievance, the date of the event, and the specific provision of the Agreement alleged to have been violated and the relief requested. Because the parties recognize that a police officer may have difficulty contacting his on-duty superior officer, it is agreed that the grievant may submit written notification of the grievance to any superior officer. The notification will be deemed received for purposes of the grievance procedure when stamped and received by the superior officer. The superior officer shall answer the grievance in writing within seven (7) calendar days.

Step Two: Appeal to Chief

If the grievance is not settled in Step One, or if a timely answer is not given, the police officer may, within Seven (7) calendar days following the superior officer's answer or expiration of the time limit set forth in Step One, file with the Chief of Police a written appeal signed by the Bargaining Unit Member. The written appeal shall include a description of the event giving rise to the grievance, the date of the event, and the provision of the Agreement alleged to have been violated and the basis upon which the grievant believes the grievance was improperly denied at the previous step. The police

officer and a representative of the Union (if requested by the police officer) may meet with the Chief to discuss the grievance at a mutually agreeable time. If no agreement is reached in such discussion, the Chief or his designee shall give a written answer within seven (7) calendar days of the date of the discussion.

Step Three: Appeal to the Village President

If the grievance is not settled in Step Two, or if a timely answer is not given, the Bargaining Unit Member may, within seven (7) calendar days of the date he receives an answer from the Chief, file with the Village President a written appeal signed by the police officer. The Bargaining Unit Member and a representative of the Union (if requested by the Bargaining Unit Member) will meet with the Village President or his designee to discuss the grievance at a mutually agreeable time. If no agreement is reached in such discussion, the Village President or his designee will give his answer in writing within fourteen (14) calendar days of the date of the discussion.

Step Four: Arbitration

If the grievance is not settled in accordance with the foregoing procedure or if a timely answer is not given, the Union may refer the grievance to arbitration by giving written notice to the Village President within fourteen (14) calendar days after receipt of the Village President's answer in Step Three.

If the parties are unable to agree upon an arbitrator within fourteen (14) calendar days after the Village receives the notice of referral, they shall jointly request the Federal Mediation and Conciliation Service to submit a panel of seven (7) arbitrators, all of whom shall be members in good standing of the National Academy of Arbitrators, from the "metropolitan" (within 125 miles) area, with an industry specialization of "police". Upon receipt of the panel, the Union and the Village will determine by coin toss who is to strike first. The Union and Village shall then alternate striking a name, and the person whose name remains shall be the arbitrator, provided that either party, before striking any names, shall have the right to reject one panel of arbitrators in its entirety and request that a new panel be submitted.

The arbitrator shall be notified of his selection and shall be asked to set a time and a place for the hearing, subject to the availability of Village and Union representatives. Upon the request of either party, the arbitrator shall have the power to subpoena witnesses for relevant and material testimony or Subpoenas duces tecum for relevant and material documents.

The arbitrator shall have no power, in his decision or award, to amend, modify, nullify, ignore, add to, or subtract from the provisions of this Agreement. The arbitrator shall consider and decide only the question of fact as to whether there has been a violation, misinterpretation, or misapplication of the specific provisions of this Agreement, to include interpretation of the mutually accepted past practices if they relate directly to the interpretation and application of the specific provisions of this Agreement. The arbitrator shall consider and decide only the specific issue submitted to him as raised and presented in writing and shall have no authority to make his decision on any issue not so submitted. His decision shall be based solely upon an interpretation of the meaning or application of this Agreement to the facts of the grievance presented. More than one grievance may be submitted to the same arbitrator if both parties

mutually agree in writing. The arbitrator shall submit in writing his decision within thirty (30) calendar days following close of the hearing or submission of briefs by the parties, whichever is later, unless the parties agree to an extension. In the event the arbitrator finds a violation of the Agreement, he shall determine an appropriate remedy. However, the arbitrator shall have no authority to make any decision or award that is in any way contrary to or inconsistent with the applicable laws or rules and regulations of administrative bodies that have the force and effect of law.

Any decision or award of the arbitrator rendered consistent with this Article shall be final and binding on the parties. The costs of the arbitration, including the fee and expenses of the arbitrator and the cost of the court reporter and a written transcript, if any, shall be divided equally between the Village and the Union, however, should only one party request a transcript, that party shall pay for the cost of the transcript. Each party shall be responsible for compensating its own representatives and witnesses.

Section 6.3 Time Limits

No grievance shall be entertained or processed unless it is filed within the time limits set forth in Section 6.2. If a grievance is not presented by the Bargaining Unit Member or the Union within the time limits set above, it shall be considered waived and may not be further pursued by the police officer or the Union. If the Village fails to provide an answer within the time limits so provided, the grievance shall be deemed denied and the Union may immediately appeal to the next step.

The time limits specified above may be extended at steps 1, 2 and 3 by mutual written agreement between the aggrieved Bargaining Unit Member and the management representative involved in the grievance resolution process.

ARTICLE VII HOURS OF WORK AND OVERTIME

Section 7.1 Purpose

This Article generally defines the normal hours of work and establishes the basis for the calculation of overtime. Nothing in this Article shall diminish or negate the right of Management to exclusively set the hours of work and overtime.

Section 7.2 Shift Schedule

The Police Chief shall endeavor to provide all police officers covered by this Agreement with a tentative written work schedule at least thirty (30) days prior to its effective date. The normal shift schedule shall be based upon a twenty-eight (28) day departmental work cycle and shall not be changed without negotiations with the Chapter.

Section 7.3 Shift Selection and Assignment

Shift assignments shall generally be for terms of one year; provided, however, the assignment of probationary officers may be changed during the year. For purposes of this Agreement, the term "shift assignment" shall mean both "team" and "time" of assignment. Bargaining Unit Members will submit their shift assignments preferences for the following year in writing to the Chief of Police or his designee by September 1st of the year preceding the year in which such assignments are to be effective. Work shifts shall be selected by seniority on an annual basis. The Chief of Police or his designee shall, on or before November 15th, post the shift assignments for the upcoming calendar year. Although shift assignments shall generally be based upon seniority, the Chief of Police or his Designee may change the shift assignment(s) of one or more bargaining unit members when special qualifications are needed for tasks, for emergencies, or for the following three reasons:

- 1. To avoid having two probationary officers on the same shift or team;
- 2. To provide a probationary officer with exposure to a variety of shift assignments for not more than two months following his/her release from field training; and
- 3. Where it is reasonably anticipated that an officer will be off work for two or more consecutive weeks for such things as extended training, sick leave, injury leave, etc., but excluding vacation leave.

If the Chief of Police determines that such a need exists to deviate from seniority-based shift assignments as described by this provision, he shall, utilizing reverse seniority, provide the affected bargaining unit member(s) with as much advance notice of the change as reasonably practicable.

Section 7.4 Normal Work Schedule

The normal workdays for patrol officers shall consist of twelve (12) hours. Each Officer shall take a paid thirty (30) minute break each duty shift whether or not the period is used for food consumption. Should a police officer's meal be interrupted based upon an emergency or other official assignment of work, that police officer shall be entitled to the remaining meal time at a later time during the shift. The Shift Supervisor will make every effort to see that each officer gets a total of 30 minutes for lunch. During a twelve-hour tour of duty, each officer may take three 15-minute breaks at authorized locations or at the station. Officers may add break time onto lunch periods to extend the lunch to no more than 60 minutes.

Police officers covered by this Agreement assigned to twelve (12) hour workdays shall work seven (7) days every pay period, and shall have Friday, Saturday and Sunday as their scheduled days off on alternating weekends. Police Officers covered by this agreement assigned to ten (10) hour workdays shall work eight (8) workdays every pay period.

Section 7.5 Overtime Pay

Each work period shall begin on a Sunday and runs for fourteen (14) consecutive days thereafter. Unless assigned on a twelve (12) hour shift, time compensated to any officer in excess of eighty (80) hours in the fourteen (14) day period, shall be paid for at time and one-half the officer's regular straight time hourly rate. When assigned to a twelve (12) hour shift, officers work eighty-four (84) hours in a fourteen (14) day period. The additional four (4) hours will be banked at the officer's straight time rate in the form of "Duty-Reduction Time". Each Bargaining Unit Member is responsible for requesting the duty reduction time off by submitting a time off request in the Department's scheduling software prior to the beginning of the shift for which duty reduction time is requested. Duty reduction time shall be taken off in a minimum of four (4) hour increments unless the employee has less than four (4) hours in which case the remaining time may be used. If an employee does not request this time off, it will be assigned in the remaining month of the quarter based on the Department needs. During an officer's field training period, the Department will schedule duty reduction time off based upon operational needs; however, a request by a trainee for time off will not be unreasonably denied.

For purposes of overtime calculation, time worked shall mean and include all hours actually worked, except for sick time which shall not be considered as hours worked for the purpose of calculating overtime pay.

Section 7.6 Compensatory Time

At the police officers' discretion, a police officer may opt to earn compensatory time in lieu of payment for overtime. Said compensatory time shall be earned at one and one-half (1 ½) times the police officer's regular hourly rate of pay for each hour of overtime worked. Compensatory time shall be taken in a minimum of two (2) hour increments. Compensatory time shall be used at the police officer's discretion for paid time off at a later date with the approval of the Chief of Police or as a cash payment through the payroll system at the request of the police officer. Covered police officers may accumulate up to eighty (80) hours of compensatory time. All compensatory time accumulated in excess of 40 hours, and not utilized by December 1st of any given year, shall be paid off at the police officer's regular hourly rate of pay.

An employee with accrued compensatory time desiring to schedule compensatory time off shall submit a Paid Time Off request in the schedule software at least forty-eight (48) hours prior to the beginning of the shift that he/she proposes to take off, provided that the Chief of Police or his designee can waive this advance notice requirement on a case-by-case basis. No notice is required if granting the compensatory time request will not result in staffing dropping below the department's established minimum staffing requirements.

Section 7.7 Overtime Scheduling

The Chief of Police or his designee shall have the right to require overtime work and officers may not refuse overtime assignments. Overtime assignments will be scheduled on a voluntary basis, except for emergency situations or except where qualified volunteers are not readily available.

{00747182.DOC v. 1 }

"Scheduled overtime" is defined as overtime that is known at least seventy-two (72) hours in advance of start of such overtime. Scheduled overtime shall be filled by posting a notice at least seventy-two (72) hours before the beginning of such overtime.

Overtime shall be offered to those sworn officers [regardless of rank or assignment] that are off-duty and able to work without exceeding the maximum allowable hours, in the order they appear on the Total Overtime Worked Report. The officer having the least number of annual overtime hours will be offered the time first. Seniority by date of hire will be the determining factor when total overtime worked hours are equal. If no available officer voluntarily accepts the overtime, the shift hours will be assigned to an officer from the other squad of the same shift; [i.e., Day shift officer will not be assigned a night shift or vice versa.] Officers will be ordered to cover overtime shifts using reverse-seniority, with the junior most officers being ordered in first.

Section 7.8 Court Time

A Bargaining Unit Member that is required by the Village to be in court while scheduled to be off duty shall be compensated at the applicable hourly rate of pay for hours spent on court time, with a minimum of three (3) hours compensation, including travel time between the police station and court. Bargaining Unit Members shall receive a minimum of three (3) hours credit for hours worked. If the officer works more than three (3) hours, the Bargaining Unit Member shall report in person such activity to the supervisor on the same date. Bargaining Unit Members who must attend court at the end their shift, may request to flex their hours and attend court if the shift strength will not be brought below minimum staffing.

A Bargaining Unit Member called to testify due to his official capacity and is compensated by the Village for his time, shall turn over to the Village any witness fees paid.

Section 7.9 Call-Out Pay

A call-out is defined as an official assignment of work that is not part of the officer's regular duty schedule. This section shall not apply if an officer is directed to begin work early. A call-out shall commence when the officer acknowledges to the supervisor, OIC, or dispatch that they are en-route to respond to said call-out and ends when the employee arrives back at his residence (portal to portal). A "call-out" shall be compensated at the Bargaining Unit Member's applicable rate for all hours worked on call-out. A minimum of three (3) hours pay will be guaranteed for all "call-outs."

Section 7.10 Longevity

Employees will receive their annual longevity pay in the first payroll period following their anniversary of their date of hire in accordance with the following schedule:

Years of Service 5 -9 years

Longevity Pay Amount \$500

{00747182.DOC v, 1 }

10 -14 years	\$1000
15- 19 years	\$1250
20 - 24 years	\$1500
25 years and after	\$2000

Section 7.11 Extra Details

The employer agrees that when extra details are available, these extra details shall be offered to all full-time sworn officers who have completed their field training program and have requested to be considered for such assignments. Officers shall be considered for such assignments in accordance with past practice. The Village reserves the right to utilize part-time police or auxiliary officers for these extra details after such extra details have been posted for full time officers. Once the schedule for extra details is set, there should be no bumping of officers, either full-time, part-time or auxiliary. If a police officer is assigned to work such detail during his regular work schedule, such officer shall be paid his regularly hourly rate of pay. The parties agree that any police officer covered by this agreement who work these extra details outside of their regular work schedule will be paid at the applicable overtime rate. Scheduling extra-duty details is a management right covered in Section 2.1.

Section 7.12 Training Sessions

Bargaining Unit Members assigned to training shall be required to work the remainder of their assigned shift prior to or upon return from the training, or they may request to use accrued personal time off with the approval of the Chief of Police or his designee. The minimum advance notice and minimum hour increment may be waived for requesting accrued personal time off before or following a training session under this section only. Officers assigned to training for five (5) or more consecutive days shall be scheduled off on the Sunday prior to and the Saturday immediately after the training.

Any training scheduled will be paid for time actually worked, subject to the minimum as set forth in "Section 7.9, Call-Out Pay" above, unless the training is immediately prior to or after the officer's start or end time. In this case, the officer will be paid for time actually worked and not subject to the minimum as set forth in Section 7.9, Call-Out Pay.

Section 7.13 No Pyramiding

Compensation shall not be paid more than once for the same hours under any provision of this Article or Agreement.

ARTICLE VIII VACATION

Section 8.1 Eligibility and Allowances

Police officers earn vacation as follows:

{00747182,DOC v, 1 }

Length of Continuous Service	Hours per Year	Hours per Month	Hours per Pay Period
0-5 years	80	6.67	3.08
6-10 years 11-15 years	120 160	10 13.33	4.62 6.15
16 or more years	200	16.67	7.69

Bargaining unit employees will be credited for the vacation hours earned in accordance with the above schedule for each period of employment or partial period of employment, based upon their number of years of service. Accrual rates will be adjusted each anniversary date based upon the number of years of service completed in the prior year.

Vacation hours that will be earned prior to the end of the calendar year shall be available on January 1st of that year. Non-probationary bargaining unit employees may schedule up to eighty (80) hours of unearned vacation in a calendar year so long as the time will be earned by December 31st of that year. Probationary officers will earn vacation time monthly. At the completion of the probationary period, officers will receive the prorated balance of their annual vacation time. Any unused accrued vacation time for non-probationary employees is paid upon separation of employment. Probationary employees who are separated from employment may only be paid for unused vacation time accrued from their start date to separation date. If, upon separation of employment, an officer has taken vacation that he/she has not already accrued, payment for this time will be deducted from the employee's final paycheck. Any vacation time taken, but not earned as of the time of separation shall be withheld from the final paycheck.

Section 8.2 Vacation Pay

The rate of vacation pay shall be the Bargaining Unit Member's regular straight-time rate of pay in effect for the Bargaining Unit Member's regular job classification on the payday immediately preceding the Bargaining Unit Member's vacation.

Section 8.3 Vacation Scheduling

Bargaining Unit Members may make their vacation request prior to December 1st for the entire following calendar year. Sergeants shall be included in each round of the scheduling process and shall have first choice prior to bargaining unit members in each round.

First Round: a vacation request may be made in a single one (1) or two (2) week increment only.

Second Round: a vacation request may be made for two (2) weeks from remaining available weeks in one (1) or two (2) week increments only, but selections of two (2) weeks do not have to be consecutive weeks.

Third Round: a vacation request may be made for any remaining vacation to which the individual is entitled.

{00747182.DOC v. 1 }

After each sergeant and Bargaining Unit Member has had the opportunity to make his or her selection in a particular round, the process shall move to the next round. In the case of conflicting requests for vacation among bargaining unit members in any round, seniority shall prevail.

The annual vacation schedule shall be posted on or before January 15th of each year. Bargaining Unit Members with accrued vacation remaining may then submit requests for the use of any remaining vacation time that has not been assigned in the annual vacation schedule. Unless otherwise authorized by the Chief of Police, Bargaining Unit Members shall utilize vacation in increments of not less than one (1) workday. Once a vacation schedule is established, no officer shall be 'bumped' as a result of another officer's subsequent request, regardless of seniority. This paragraph shall not preclude the Chief of Police from canceling vacations during an emergency.

Section 8.4 Vacation Carryover

The maximum number of vacation hours that may be carried over from December 31st to the next calendar year is the amount of vacation the police officer earned in the prior twelve (12) months. If a Bargaining Unit Member has requested vacation and is not able to take vacation due to work requirements to meet the Department's needs, the police officer will be compensated for accumulated vacation time in excess of the amount that may be carried over into the new year, at the rate of pay existing at the time the vacation time was accrued, at the first regular payday of the next year. Unused vacation time may be paid out on the employee's request on the last pay period of the fiscal year.

ARTICLE IX HOLIDAYS

Section 9.1 Holidays

The following days are designated holidays:

New Year's Day
Martin Luther King Jr.'s Birthday
President's Day
Memorial Day
Independence Day
Labor Day
Veteran's Day
Thanksgiving Day
Day after Thanksgiving
Christmas Eve
Christmas Day

Holidays shall be observed on the actual day of the holiday. If State or Federal law changes any of the dates for the above holidays, the new date will be observed in place of the date listed

{00747182,DOC v. 1 }

above. For employees assigned to a Monday through Friday work week, if an approved holiday falls on Saturday, the preceding Friday will be observed as the holiday. If an approved holiday falls on Sunday, the following Monday will be observed as the holiday.

Section 9.2 Holiday Bank

Employees receive eight hours straight time pay for each holiday, which may be taken as pay or holiday time-off at the employee's discretion. Requests to take a fixed holiday off in lieu of this extra compensation are subject to the same prior notice and processing requirements as vacation time.

Section 9.3 Holiday Pay

When required to work on a designated holiday, police officers shall be paid one and one-half (1½) times the police officer's regular straight time pay for all hours worked between the hours of 12:01 a.m. to 11:59 p.m. on the holiday and double time for any hours worked as overtime. When a holiday occurs during a police officer's vacation period, the police officer may request to be paid straight time holiday pay that is equal to the number of hours in their normal workday. The holiday pay is in lieu of vacation pay for that day. Such hours will be deducted from the Holiday Bank.

ARTICLE X INSURANCE

Section 10.1 Insurance

All covered police officers are eligible to participate in the Village's health, prescription, dental and life insurance programs effective the first day of the month following their employment on a full-time basis. Bargaining unit employees shall pay 15% of the premium cost for the coverage selected and the Village shall pay the remaining cost. The Village reserves the right to change insurance carriers or to self-insure as it deems appropriate, as long as the new coverage and benefits for bargaining unit police officers are substantially similar to those which predated the change.

Section 10.2 Life Insurance

The Village shall provide to all covered union members life insurance in the amount at the current rate.

Section 10.3 Long Term Disability Benefit

The Village shall provide a disability benefit for those officers who have applied for a non-duty disability pension from the Village of Barrington Hills Police Pension Board for illness or injury and have used all their sick leave and any other paid time off. In such event, the Village will place such bargaining unit member on paid administrative leave at fifty percent (50%) of their rate of pay until the award of a disability pension by the Pension Board. Upon the granting of a non-duty disability pension, the officer shall reimburse the Village for the amount

{00747182,DOC v. 1 }

received during the paid leave. This reimbursement will be made directly from the Pension Board to the Village. The officer agrees to execute the appropriate documents to affect the payment prior to going on paid administrative leave.

If the officer is not granted a disability pension from the Pension Board and the Village determines that the officer is not fit to perform the full range of duties and responsibilities of a police officer, the Village agrees not to seek reimbursement for this payment. If the officer is not granted a disability pension from the pension board, but does return to work as a police officer, the officer shall be responsible to reimburse the Village for this payment, on a reasonable payment schedule agreeable to the Village and the officer.

The officer agrees to pursue the disability pension application as expeditiously as practicable.

Section 10.4 Additional Insurance Benefits

Upon mutual agreement between the Bargaining Unit Member and the Village, and in accordance with the terms and conditions of the insurance policy, the Village will continue health insurance coverage during any unpaid leave of absence in excess of thirty (30) days at the police officer's expense. COBRA continuation rights may apply in the event coverage is not extended through the Village. Upon a Bargaining Unit Member's separation from Village employment, at the police officer's option and expense, the police officer may elect to continue Village Health Insurance benefits to the extent provided under COBRA.

Section 10.5 Waiver of Health and/or Dental Insurance

A police officer eligible for health and dental coverage through the Village insurance may waive such coverage in accordance with this Section. Police officers who waive health and/or dental insurance coverage through the Village in accordance with this Section will receive a "waiver payment" as provided in this Section. Such payment shall be equal to fifty (50%) percent of the HMO single premium and/or fifty (50%) percent of the single dental premium, depending upon the coverage waived. Waiver of health and/or dental coverage shall be made annually during the open enrollment period and shall be effective beginning with the renewal date of the insurance coverage and shall remain in effect until the next renewal date. Prior to making a waiver of health insurance, the police officer must show proof of health insurance coverage from another source, which must be provided quarterly. Dental insurance may be waived without proof of other dental insurance coverage. The "waiver payment" will be made by separate check after the close of the insurance year during which such coverage has been waived unless the police officer has requested that the payment be made on his semi-monthly paycheck in amounts equal to 1/24th of the annual amount.

Section 10.6 Terms of Insurance Policies to Govern

The extent of coverage under the insurance policies referred to in this Agreement shall be governed by the terms and conditions set forth in said policies or plans. Any questions or disputes concerning said insurance policies or plans or benefits there under shall be resolved in accordance with the terms and conditions set forth in said policies or plans and shall not be

{00747182.DOC v. 1 }

subject to the grievance and arbitration procedure set forth in this Agreement. The failure of any insurance carrier(s) or plan administrator(s) to provide any benefit for which it has contracted or is obligated shall result in no liability to the Village, nor shall such failure be considered a breach by the Village of any obligation undertaken under this or any other Agreement. Nothing in this Agreement shall be construed to relieve any insurance carrier(s) or plan administrator(s) from any liability it may have to the Village, employee or beneficiary of any Bargaining Unit Member, and nothing in this Section shall relieve the Village of its obligation to provide and maintain coverage as specified in this Article.

ARTICLE XI SICK LEAVE

Section 11.1 Purpose

The purpose of sick leave is to provide the Bargaining Unit Member with protection against loss of income due to personal sickness or injury, or for necessary care of a Bargaining Unit Member's immediate family, or medical consultations which prevent the performance of normal job duties.

Sick leave may be taken because of personal illness, disability, or for the necessary care of the Bargaining Unit Member's immediate family, including for the care of a newborn child or the mother of the child. Sick leave may also be used for physical examinations and medical consultations and in situations where the use of a prescription drug would impair performance or safety. Bargaining Unit Members scheduled to work a fixed shift on days should make every effort to schedule physical exams and non-emergency medical consultations for non-duty time.

Section 11.2 Sick Leave Accrual

Effective January 1, 2018, and retroactive to said date, Bargaining Unit Members accrue sick leave benefits at the rate of nine (9) hours for each month of employment. Each December 31st, a police officer shall have the right to carry over sick leave into the next calendar year.

Section 11.3 Sick Leave Usage

Each police officer needing to take a day of sick leave, shall notify the Department during Records Section hours and shall make notification to the on-duty supervisor or OIC during times when Records is closed, at least two (2) hours prior to the beginning of that union member's shift, of the estimated amount of sick leave time required, and the reason for the leave. Failure to make such notification shall cause the supervisor to categorize that day as absent without leave, unless additional justifiable information is provided. In the event that the Village policy conflicts with the Agreement, the Agreement shall prevail.

The Chief of Police may require a doctor's certificate when a union member is absent for a period in excess of three (3) consecutive days. The Chief may also request the opinion of a second doctor at the Village's expense to determine the union member's fitness for duty and

{00747182.DOC v. 1 }

whether there is any physical or mental condition that impairs his/her ability to perform the essential functions of the job.

Union Members who use all their accumulated sick leave and require more time off work due to illness or injury may, with the approval of the Chief of Police, use accumulated vacation. In accordance with this agreement, the union member may request leave without pay.

Section 11.4 Sick Leave Separation Incentive

In order to reduce the amount of sick time usage, effective January 1, 2018, a sick leave incentive program of the following terms and conditions shall be in effect.

<u>Part One</u>: In order to be eligible to receive this benefit, a separating employee must have at least ten (10) years of continuous service with the Village and the minimum number of hours of unused accrued sick leave as of the date of separation from the Village based on the following:

Years of continuous service as of January 1, 2018:

- 10 or more years of continuous service 300 hours
- Less than 10 years of continuous service 600 hours

Examples: If an officer has 12 years of continuous service as of January 1, 2018, the minimum number of hours of unused accrued sick leave that the officer must have to be eligible for the sick leave incentive benefit at separation is 300 hours. If an officer has five (5) years, the minimum number of hours of unused accrued sick leave that the officer must have to be eligible for the sick leave incentive benefit at separation is 600 hours.

<u>Part Two</u>: Upon separation from employment, the appropriate value of an eligible employee's accrued sick leave hours accrued pursuant to the Sick Leave Incentive Payout Schedule below will be applied to the purchase of retiree health insurance or the reimbursement of out-of-pocket medical expenses for such employee or his eligible dependents, or as a cash payout at the following rates, at the employee's request.

Sick Leave Incentive Payout Schedule

- Completion of 10 years through 14 years -- 25%
- Completion of 15 years through 19 years -- 37.5%
- Completion of 20 years through Separation -- 50%

ARTICLE XII LEAVE OF ABSENCE

Section 12.1 Leave Without Pay

The Village may grant leaves of absence without pay for absence from work not covered by any other type of leave or if other leave balances are exhausted. Examples of situations for which leave without pay may be granted include time off work for personal reasons, such as caring for an ill relative, pursuing an education, or fulfilling a military obligation in excess of fifteen (15) days per year. Leave without pay for purposes of other employment will not be authorized.

Police officers must have completed their probationary period to be eligible for such leave. Leave may be granted with the recommendation of the Chief of Police, and with the approval of the Village President, subject to the following requirements:

- (1) Leave may be granted to a police officer for a period not to exceed ninety (90) days, upon the approval of the Village President. Further extensions may be granted at the discretion of the Village President.
- (2) Accrued compensatory time, if any, must be exhausted prior to the taking of any leave without pay.
- (3) A police officer's benefits may be suspended during the period of unpaid leave that extends beyond thirty (30) days until the police officer returns to work. In certain circumstances, the Village may continue to pay its portion for insurance coverage, or the police officer may be required to pay the entire insurance premium. Vacation, sick leave and/or any other benefits do not accrue while a police officer is on leave without pay for more than thirty (30) days, except that insurance benefits may continue for a regular full-time police officer on leave pursuant to the Family and Medical Leave Act.
- (4) A police officer that fails to report to duty promptly at the end of unpaid leave shall be presumed to have resigned. A police officer returning from a temporary disability leave may, at the Village's option, return to the same position or a similar position at a comparable rate of pay.
- (5) If the leave without pay is due to an illness, the Village may require a doctor's certificate stating that the police officer is capable of returning to work and performing the essential work, duties and responsibilities of the police officer's position.

Section 12.2 Bereavement Leave

Bargaining Unit Members will be given paid leave to attend the funeral of an immediate family member and to attend to necessary business associated with the death of the family member and funeral. Immediate family includes the police officer's spouse, child (natural or adopted),

{00747182.DOC v. 1 }

stepchild, parent, brother or sister, mother or father-in-law, son or daughter-in-law, brother or sister-in-law, grandparents or grandchildren, any person who has resided at the officer's home for at least 12 consecutive months, or any other person designated by the Chief of Police. In the event of the death of a family member during previously scheduled paid leave, the paid leave will be returned to the employee's leave bank for duration of any paid bereavement leave.

Such paid leave shall be three (3) days, except that the Chief of Police may authorize up to an additional two (2) days if extended travel is required. The Chief of Police, at his discretion, may also authorize bereavement leave without pay for the time necessary to attend the funeral of a close family member not defined as an immediate family member.

Section 12.3 Jury Leave

Bargaining Unit Employees shall be granted time off with pay to serve on a jury. If a union member is summoned during a critical work period, the Department may ask the union member to request a waiver or rescheduling of the duty. If the jury duty occurred during the union members work hours, the officer will cash the jury duty check and the officer's paycheck will be reduced by the amount of the jury leave check.

Scction 12.4 Administrative Leave

The Chief of Police may place a police officer on paid administrative leave with pay for an indefinite period of time. Such leave shall be on a case-by-case basis as determined by the Chief of Police to be in the best interests of the Village during the pendency of an investigation or other administrative proceedings.

Section 12.5 Military Leave

Military leave shall be granted in accordance with applicable State and Federal laws. No loss of seniority will occur during these absences.

Section 12.6 Maternity/Paternity Leave

Full-time Bargaining Unit Members who have been employed for at least twelve (12) months shall be entitled for up to twelve (12) weeks unpaid maternity/paternity leave for the birth and care of their newborn child. A Bargaining Unit Member's health insurance benefits shall remain in effect during the duration of the leave under the same terms as if the employee was actively employed.

Section 12.7 Application for Leave

A request for leave shall be in writing to the Chief of Police as far in advance as practicable, stating the reason and amount of time requested. Leave may be granted with the approval of the Village President. Any additional extension will be at the discretion of the Chief of Police with the approval of the Village President.

ARTICLE XIII WAGES

Section 13.1 Wage Schedule

Bargaining Unit Members shall be compensated in accordance with the wage schedules attached to this Agreement as Appendix A. Employees with previous law enforcement experience may be hired at step 1 or moved up to any step up to and including step 6 at the discretion of the Chief of Police. Step increases for all employees shall be on their anniversary date.

The January 1, 2023, salary increase shall be retroactive to January 1, 2023 for all employees still on the active payroll on the date this Memorandum of Agreement is ratified by both parties and shall be implemented by separate check.

Section 13.2 Special Assignment Compensation

Field Training Officer

For each workday a Bargaining Unit Member is assigned to function as a Field Training Officer (FTO) for a probationary union member and actually performs such function; such Bargaining Unit Member shall be compensated a rate of .083 hours of compensatory straight time pay or cash at the officer's discretion for each hour they actually supervise and train a probationary union member. A Bargaining Unit Member who is certified as an FTO, but not performing FTO duties on a given workday shall be ineligible for any FTO compensation for that day.

<u>Detective</u>

Bargaining Unit Members covered under this agreement assigned to the Investigations Section as a Detective shall receive \$800 annually from the Village for clothing expenses in the form of two payments of \$400 in May, and \$400 in October. A Detective shall not receive the October clothing allowance when he is scheduled to be rotated out of the Investigations Section in January of the upcoming year. This does not include Bargaining Unit Members assigned in an investigative position with an external or multi-jurisdictional unit.

Evidence Technician

A qualified bargaining unit member is who specifically assigned to be on call to serve and function as an ET as shown on the Department's schedule during off duty hours shall be compensated a rate of .0415 hours of straight time pay for each hour that he/she is so assigned.

Section 13.3 Officer In Charge Compensation

In the event that no supervisory personnel (rank of sergeant or above) are present and working Patrol, a Bargaining Unit Member shall be designated by the Chief of Police or his designee to serve as the Officer in Charge (OIC). The OIC shall be compensated a rate of .125 hours of compensatory straight time per hour while they are functioning as an OIC.

No member of the bargaining unit who is in an acting capacity shall have any authority to respond to any grievances being processed in accordance with this Agreement, nor to take any action or make any statement, agreement, settlement or representation which shall place any duty or obligation on the Village or Police Department while acting under this Section. The Chief of Police or his designee shall determine who and when an officer will be assigned as an OIC in accordance with this Section.

Section 13.4 Holiday Bonus

The Village shall provide to bargaining unit members the same annual holiday bonus, gift or present, if any, that it provides to other Village employees.

ARTICLE XIV DISCIPLINE

Section 14.1 Discipline

The Village agrees that disciplinary action shall generally be progressive in nature and intended as a corrective measure. Giving consideration to the severity of the infraction, disciplinary actions may include the following:

- Verbal Warning: A verbal warning is a counseling session between the police officer's supervisor and the police officer on the subject of the police officer's conduct and performance, or his/her failure to observe a rule, regulation, or administrative instruction. It is intended to increase a police officer's efficiency and value to the Village by changing the police officer's conduct, attitude, habits, or work methods. Following the counseling session, the supervisor shall document the verbal warning. The supervisor shall provide a copy of the document to the police officer.
- Written Reprimand: A written reprimand is a formal written disciplinary action for misconduct, inadequate performance, or repeated lesser infractions. Written reprimands shall be placed in the police officer's personnel file with a copy provided to the police officer.
- <u>Suspension</u>: A suspension is a temporary, unpaid absence from duty that may be imposed as a penalty for significant misconduct or repeated lesser infractions. Suspensions may be issued by the Chief of Police.
- <u>Discharge/Termination:</u>

{00747182,DOC v. 1 }

If the Village has reason to reprimand an employee, it shall be done in a manner that will not embarrass the employee before other employees or the public. Any disciplinary action taken against an employee shall be for just cause and is subject to the grievance procedure of this Agreement.

In any disciplinary grievance arbitration case, the arbitrator shall have the authority to consider what weight, if any, to give any prior discipline received by the grievant and submitted by the Village in support of its decision to discipline or terminate the grievant

Section 14.2 Surveillance of Employees

When the Village initiates an internal affairs investigation of an employee and/or formal investigation or interrogation is conducted pursuant to Section 2 (c) or (d) of the Uniform Peace Officers' Disciplinary Act, 5 ILCS 7, Section 725/1 et seq., that involve non-criminal allegations of wrongdoing, a bargaining unit member will only be questioned after the employee and, if the employee has requested union representation, the employee's union representative have been allowed to observe all the audio/video recording(s) that involve the subject matter of the investigation or interrogation. In any disciplinary arbitration hearing conducted pursuant to the provisions of Article 8 (Grievance Procedure) of this Agreement, the Village is barred from seeking to introduce any admission(s) or statement(s) made by a bargaining unit member during the course of any such investigation or interrogation that were made in violation of the provisions of this section. Any questions concerning the admissibility of any surveillance evidence will be left to the trier of fact. The provisions of this section shall not be applicable to any investigation or interrogation involving allegation(s) of criminal wrongdoing.

Section 14.3 Fitness for Duty

If there is any question concerning an employee's fitness for duty or fitness to return to duty following a layoff or leave of absence, the Village may require, at its expense, that the employee be examined by a medical professional selected by the Village who is qualified and licensed in the appropriate specialty and/or subspecialty. All such examinations/tests required by the Village shall be at the Village's expense.

If it is determined that an employee is not fit for duty based on the foregoing, the Village may place the employee on sick leave (or unpaid medical leave if the employee does not have any unused sick leave days) or take other appropriate action.

Any question about an employee's fitness for duty will be subject to the grievance procedure of this Agreement.

Nothing herein shall be construed to alter or affect an employee's or the Village's statutory Workers Compensation or PEDA rights.

ARTICLE XV MISCELLANEOUS PROVISIONS

Section 15.1 Ratification and Amendment

This Agreement shall become effective when ratified by the Village and the Union and signed by authorized representatives thereof and may be amended or modified during its term only with mutual written consent of both parties.

Section 15.2 No Discrimination

Neither the Employer nor the Union shall contrary to law discriminate against employees because of membership or non-membership in the Union; because of participation or nonparticipation in Union activities, because of their race, color, sex, sexual orientation, national origin, religion, physical or mental disability, the perception of mental disability, age, marital status, veteran status, political affiliation or any other basis prohibited by applicable federal, state or local fair employment laws or regulations. Any claimed violation of this provision may be grieved through step three of the grievance procedure. The claimed violation is not subject to arbitration but shall instead be subject to the enforcement in the applicable court, administrative agency, or other legal body. It is not a prerequisite for such legal action that a grievance be filed by the employee or employees.

Section 15.3 Reimbursement for Expenses

Per Diem: January 1, 2023, or the first pay period following ratification of this Agreement if it is later, meals will be paid at the following rates: Breakfast \$8.50 (\$10.00 effective January 1, 2025), Lunch \$14.50 (\$16.00 effective January 1, 2025), Dinner \$22.50 (\$25.00 effective January 1, 2025. In order to receive a per diem allowance the following guidelines will apply: For breakfast, the employee must be on travel status and/or leave the Village Hall or residence (if reporting directly to a destination other than the department) prior to 6:00 A.M. For lunch, the employee must be away at another location than Barrington Hills for a full day training seminar/class. For dinner, the employee must be on travel status and/or arrive back at the Village Hall or residence (if traveling directly from a destination other than the department) after 7:00 P.M. No per diem will be paid when an employee is provided a meal as part of the event he/she is attending.

Whenever possible, the daily per diem will be issued to the employee prior to departure. Any meal costs more than the allotted per diem rate will be borne by the employee and not reimbursable. If necessary, reimbursement will be paid to the employee upon their return to work, following submission of the reimbursement form.

Mileage - Official Business

When it is necessary for an employee to travel to a department-designated school, seminar, or training function (other than at the Village Hall), and use the employee's personally owned vehicle, the Village will reimburse the employee according to IRS established rates only when permission is received by the on-duty supervisor or Chief of Police, to use a personally owned

{00747182.DOC v. 1 }

vehicle. Permission to use a personally owned vehicle shall only be granted when the on duty supervisor or Chief of Police determines a Village vehicle is not available. Mileage will be determined from the Village Hall to the required destination and back to the Village Hall. This rate will be evaluated yearly.

Hotel Accommodations

If an employee does not honor a guaranteed room reservation, the employee involved is responsible for paying the charges for the guaranteed reservation and will not be reimbursed for this charge. However, if the Village is the cause of the reservation not being honored, then the Village will pay the guaranteed charges.

Other Expenses

Other reimbursable expenses for official business are telephone calls, parking fees, bridge, road and tunnel tolls, taxi fares and other reasonable expenses. If at all possible, receipts must be presented in the employee's request for reimbursement.

Employee Responsibility

It is the employee's responsibility to accurately report all expenses incurred while on official business. Any fraudulent misrepresentation will be cause for disciplinary and/or legal action.

All such travel shall have the prior approval of the Chief of Police in order to qualify for reimbursement. The Village may establish reasonable rules or limits on such expenses. Any fraudulent misrepresentation will be cause for disciplinary action and / or legal action.

Section 15.4 Outside Employment

Police officers shall not, directly or indirectly, engage in any outside employment or have any financial interests that may conflict with the Village or interfere with the police officer's ability to perform the assigned Village job.

A police officer, who chooses to have an additional job, contractual commitment or selfemployment, may do so provided the police officer obtains prior approval from the Chief of Police. Such approval shall not be unreasonably denied.

The Department / Village reserves the right to limit and prohibit off-duty employment which is covered in GO 6021 (Secondary Employment) which may be updated from time to time as necessary for the efficient operation of the Department.

Section 15.5 Probationary Period

All newly hired police officers shall enter a probationary period that is considered an integral part of the selection and evaluation process. During the probationary period a police officer shall be required to demonstrate suitability for the position through actual work performance. Termination of a probationary period is not subject to the grievance procedure.

The normal probationary period shall be eighteen (18) months from the police officer's date of hire. Such probationary period may be extended by the Village up to six (6) additional months.

Section 15.6 Tuition Reimbursement

The Village offers an educational assistance program designed to provide you with financial support to pursue specific courses and educational programs, which will enhance your skills in current or future work-related areas. Regular, full-time employees may be reimbursed for tuition costs for courses taken at an approved and accredited institution.

To be eligible for educational assistance, each employee must meet the following criteria:

- (a) The employee's immediate Supervisor must approve the desired course and the Department Head prior to commencement. Any disapproval will be communicated to the employee by the immediate Supervisor.
- (b) The employee must be a regular full-time employee who is not on sick leave or workers' compensation leave when enrolled in the course.
- (c) The course to be taken must be directly related to the employee's job or part of an approved institutional degree program.
- (d) The employee must complete each approved course with a grade of "C" or better prior to reimbursement. For pass/fail courses, pass will suffice for reimbursement.
- (e) Courses must be taken only at approved accredited universities, colleges, or technical schools.

The Village will provide reimbursement for tuition and books only, provided the employee returns to the Department of Administration his grade slip showing a "C" grade or better completed by the school, and receipts showing actual amount paid for tuition. In the event an employee is eligible for educational assistance from another agency (e.g., government assistance to veterans), the Village will only reimburse the tuition not covered by that agency. Moreover, any such tuition reimbursement shall not exceed the cost of tuition to take the same course or program at the nearest public college or university offering the course or program or \$4,000 per calendar year, whichever is less. The total amount of tuition reimbursement shall not exceed \$10,000 per police officer over their career.

As a condition of receiving reimbursement for tuition, employees will be required to sign an "Agreement for Repayment of Educational Expenses," acknowledging the employee's obligation to repay the Village a portion of the funds reimbursed by the Village if the employee terminates employment within two (2) years following completion of the last course(s) or degree requirement per the following:

Time employed from and after last

Amount to be refunded to Village by the employee

Course or Degree requirement

100%

Less than 12 months: 12 months to 18 months:

50%

{00747182.DQC v, 1 }

Section 15.7 Compensation Upon Separation

When an individual's employment with the Village ceases, the Bargaining Unit Member will receive the following compensation:

- (a) Wages for all hours worked up to the time of separation that has not been paid.
- (b) Holiday pay that has been earned but unpaid.
- (c) Payment of any accrued but unused vacation and compensatory time.

Section 15.8 Wellness Incentive Program

Effective January 1, 2023, the Village will pay Bargaining Unit Members \$350 (\$400 effective January 1, 2025) when the officer submits written documentation that they have actually used health club facilities for physical fitness purposes (e.g., workouts) a minimum of 96 different days during a 12-month calendar year. If earned, such incentive will be paid within 45 days of submission.

ARTICLE XVI UNIFORMS

Section 16.1 Original Issue of Equipment

The parties agree that each new police officer hired by the Village of Barrington Hills Police Department shall be issued as his initial allocation of equipment, the equipment listed in Appendix C attached hereto and by reference incorporated herein.

Section 16.2 Uniforms and Equipment

The Village agrees to replace or repair any and all equipment or clothing as identified in Appendix C that is or has been issued to the police officer upon a showing to the Chief of Police that such items need to be replaced or repaired. The Village agrees that when requested to repair or replace the covered items, such request shall not be unreasonably denied by the Chief of Police or his designee. Property furnished to the police officer remains the property of the Village such that upon termination or retirement, all such property must be returned to the Village before payment of the final paycheck. The police officer shall be required to maintain and clean all such equipment or clothing at the police officer's expense.

Section 16.3 Reimbursement for Destruction of Wristwatches, etc.

As pertains to this Section 16.3, personal property required to be carried on duty by a police officer shall be limited to a wristwatch and, if needed for the police officer to perform their duties, prescription eyeglasses, or contact lenses and non-prescription sunglasses. Such personal property shall be repaired or replaced at a reasonable price, in the event of damage as a

{00747182,DOC v, 1 }

result of police duties. The parties agree that the replacement costs for personal property required to be carried on duty shall be the actual cost paid by the police officer for the replacement, but not to exceed \$100.00 for a wristwatch, and \$250.00 for prescription eyeglasses or contact lenses and not to exceed \$25.00 for non-prescription sunglasses. Police officers covered by this agreement shall only be reimbursed for the above listed items that are damaged as a result of police duties. Police officers shall report the damage to such listed personal property in writing to a supervisor prior to the end of the shift during which the damage occurred.

Any covered police officer requesting reimbursement for such damage shall provide a written receipt to the Chief of Police or his designee.

Section 16.4 Threat Level IIIA Vests

The Village shall provide all covered police officers with a minimum Threat Level IIIA protective vest as part of their original equipment upon hire. Any officer hired prior to the date this agreement is ratified who has a protective vest with less than Threat Level IIIA, shall receive a Threat Level IIIA when their current protective vest will be expiring in accordance terms of this section. A police officer may upgrade their vest at the police officer's expense. The Village shall replace vests that are shot or damaged pursuant to police duties, unless replaced by the manufacturer of the vest. Additionally, the Village shall replace vests that have passed their expiration date. The Village shall be required to place an order for a replacement vest prior to the expiration date, but only if the Village has been notified by the officer at least ninety (90) days before the expiration date that such expiration date is approaching. If such ninety (90) day notice is not provided to the Village, the Village shall endeavor to place the order for the replacement vest within a reasonable time period. The Department shall be responsible for replacement of the outer carrier if the officer desires an outer vest carrier.

ARTICLE XVII MAINTENANCE OF BENEFITS

All direct economic and non-economic benefits concerning mandatory subjects of bargaining which are not set forth or covered in this Agreement and are currently in effect shall continue and remain in effect until such time as the Employer shall notify the Chapter of its intention to change them. Upon such notification and if requested by the Chapter, the Employer shall meet and discuss such change before it is finally implemented by the Employer. Any change made without such notice shall be considered temporary pending the completion of such meet and confer discussions. If the Chapter becomes aware of such a change and has not received notification from the Employer, the Chapter must notify the Employer within thirty (30) days of the date the Chapter became aware of such change and request discussions or such inaction shall act as a waiver of the right to participate in such discussions by the Chapter. If no agreement is reached within thirty (30) calendar days after discussions begin, Chapter shall have the right to refer the dispute over the change for Arbitration as set forth in Section 14 of the Illinois Public Labor Relations Act; the parties agree that the Employer shall have the right to temporarily implement the change during the period of said bargaining and article of arbitration.

{00747182.DOC v_∈1 }

ARTICLE XVIII SAVINGS CLAUSE

In the event any Article, section or portion of this Agreement should be held invalid and unenforceable by any board, agency or court of competent jurisdiction or by reason of any existing or subsequently enacted legislation, such decision or legislation shall apply only to the specific Article, section or portion thereof specifically specified in the board, agency or court decision or legislation and the remaining parts or portions of this Agreement shall remain in full force and effect and the parties, upon the request of either party, shall meet to negotiate possible changes in the terms and conditions affected by such action.

ARTICLE XIX ENTIRE AGREEMENT

This Agreement constitutes the complete and entire Agreement between the parties and concludes collective bargaining between the parties for its term. The parties acknowledge that during the negotiations which resulted in this Agreement, each had the unlimited right and opportunity to make demands and proposals with respect to any subject or matter not removed by law or ordinance from the area of collective bargaining, and that the understanding and agreements arrived at by the parties after the exercise of that right opportunity are set forth in this Agreement.

ARTICLE XX TERMINATION

This Agreement shall be effective upon execution by both parties and shall remain in force and effect until December 31, 2026. It shall be automatically renewed from year to year thereafter unless either party shall notify the other in writing by certified mail, or hand delivery, at least one hundred twenty (120) days prior to the termination date that it desires to modify this Agreement. The notice shall be considered as given as of the date shown on the post mark, or the date of hand delivery, in which case a written, dated receipt shall be made. In the event that such notice is given, negotiations shall begin no later than ninety (90) days prior to the expiration date. Notwithstanding any provision of this Article or Agreement to the contrary, this Agreement shall remain in full force and effect after any expiration date while negotiations or resolution of impasse procedures are continuing for a new Agreement, or part thereof, between the parties.

Keith George, President

Metropolitan Alliance of Police

KILL

Officer Gary Deutschle, President

M.A.P. Union 576

Brian Cecola, Village President

Nikki Panos, Village Clerk

{00747182.DOC v, 1 }

APPENDIX A WAGE SCHEDULE

2023 Annual

3.50%

Probationary \$74,826.97 Start 2nd Year \$83,001.72 Start 3rd Year \$89,692.41 Start 4th Year \$97,001.24 Start 5th Year \$103,348.08 Start 6th Year \$110,130.67

2024 Annual

3.50%

Probationary \$77,445.91 Start 2nd Year \$85,906.78 Start 3rd Year \$92,831.64 Start 4th Year \$100,396.28 Start 5th Year \$106,965.26 Start 6th Year \$113,985.24

2025 Annual

3.25%

Probationary \$79,962.91 Start 2nd Year \$88,698.74 Start 3rd Year \$95,848.67 Start 4th Year \$103,659.16 Start 5th Year \$110,441.63 Start 6th Year \$117,689.76

2026 Annual

3.25%

Probationary \$82,561.70 Start 2nd Year \$91,581.45 Start 3rd Year \$98,963.75 Start 4th Year \$107,028.09 Start 5th Year \$114,030.98 Start 6th Year \$121,514.68

{00747182.DOC v. 1 }

APPENDIX B SENIORITY LIST

The Village shall provide the Union with a seniority list on an annual basis by September 1^{st} of each year.

Officer	Seniority Date (Hire Date)
Baird, Brian	10/16/2001
McKinney, Patrick	04/16/2005
Ruffin, Ronald	08/01/2005
Deutschle, Gary	01/01/2006
Parada, Sabas	07/01/2006
Johnson, Mark	07/01/2007
Walega, Dennis	04/07/2017
Thomas, Austin	06/16/2017
Hackbarth, Ryan	09/10/2018
Wojcik, William	08/23/2021
Leon, Reyes	09/30/2021

APPENDIX C EQUIPMENT LIST

- 1 threat level IIIA protective vest with external carrier, if desired
- 1 duty weapon
- 3 uniform shirts (short sleeve)
- 3 uniform shirts (long sleeve)
- 2 Department polo shirt
- 3 pair uniform pants (standard or BDU/cargo)
- 1 pair summer boots/shoes
- 1 pair winter boots
- 1 winter jacket w/ fleece-jacket liner
- 1 sweater (or fleece jacket if not included within winter jacket)
- 1 shirt badge
- 1 wallet badge and wallet
- 1 hat shield
- 1 nameplate
- 1 pants belt
- 1 duty belt
- 4 belt keepers
- 1 pair handcuffs
- 1 handcuff case
- 1 O.C. canister and holder
- 1 necktie (clip-on)
- 1 Department tie bar or tack
- 1 expandable baton w/ scabbard
- 1 portable radio holder
- 1 firearm security holster
- 1 conducted electrical weapon (Taser) holster
- 1 magazine pouch (double or triple)
- I medical glove pouch
- 1 key holder / key clip
- 1 five-star hat
- 1 hat rain cover
- 1 Department baseball-style hat
- 1 Department knit beanie
- 1 winter fur hat
- 1 winter face mask (balaclava)
- 1 raincoat with optional rain pants
- 1 traffic vest
- 4 turtleneck shirts
- 4 t-shirts
- 1 duty bag
- 1 pair leather gloves
- 1 rechargeable LED Flashlight w/ belt holder

APPENDIX D <u>Drug and Alcohol Testing Following an Officer Involved Shooting</u>

The Village of Barrington Hills ("Village"), and the Metropolitan Alliance of Police Chapter 576 ("Union") hereby agree to the following policy to be implemented in accordance with Illinois Public Act 100-389:

- 1. The Union agrees that its members shall be required to abide by the Barrington Hills Police Department's General Order regarding "Use of Force", including the section that requires each officer who is involved in an officer involved shooting to submit to drug and alcohol testing, so long as such testing is required by Public Act 100-389 or any similar state law.
- 2. For the purpose of clarity, the parties agree that an employee "involved in" an "officer involved shooting" is defined to mean any officer who discharged a firearm thereby causing injury or death to a person or persons. If multiple officers discharged their firearm and it is unclear whose bullet struck the person or persons, then all officers who discharged their firearm in the direction of the subject shall be required to submit to drug and alcohol testing.
- 3. The parties agree that the term "involved in" an officer-involved shooting does not include officers who did not discharge their weapon, even if they were providing other forms of support and assistance during the call. Nor does the term "involved in" include officers who discharged their weapons when it is undeniably clear their projectiles did not actually strike any person or persons.
- 4. The parties agree that the provisions of the Village's drug and alcohol testing policy shall regulate the testing procedures under this Agreement. The parties further agree that the "just cause" standard in the parties' collective bargaining agreement will govern the consequences for any positive test results under this Agreement.
- 5. The parties agree that any drug or alcohol test required pursuant to this Agreement shall be considered a compelled, non-voluntary drug or alcohol test under threat of disciplinary action. Such testing shall only be done by urinalysis or breathalyzer. Blood tests shall only be administered with a warrant. This does not limit the Village's right to obtain test results via other available legal processes.

VILLAGE OF BARRINGTON HILLS

Date: 02/28/23

MAP CHAPTER 576

By K x 5 Date: 02/20/2023

{007471**82**.DOC v, 1 }

MEMORANDUM OF AGREEMENT BETWEEN THE METROPOLITAN ALLIANCE OF POLICE AND THE VILLAGE OF BARRINGTON HILLS

This Memorandum of Agreement (hereinafter, "MOA" or "Agreement") is hereby made and entered into by and between the METROPOLITAN ALLIANCE OF POLICE, CHAPTER 576 ("MAP" or the "Union") and the VILLAGE OF BARRINGTON HILLS (hereinafter, the "Village" and collectively, the "Parties").

WHEREAS, the Village has made the decision to implement a policy related to the use of officer-worn body cameras which has been recognized as a tool for effective policing and to help maintain the integrity of our criminal justice system; and

WHEREAS, body worn cameras are an effective law enforcement tool that can reduce violent confrontations and complaints against officers. Body worn cameras provide additional documentation of police-public encounters and may be an important tool for collecting evidence and maintaining public trust.

NOW, THEREFORE, the Parties have agreed to the following:

- 1. The Village will adopt and implement a policy related to the use of officer-worn body worn cameras in accordance with the terms of the Illinois Officer Worn Body Camera Act (the "Act"), 50 ILCS 706/10 et seq. That policy and the related procedures are referred to in this MOA as the "BWC Policy."
- 2. By September 1, 2024, or 90 days prior to the effective date of the BWC Policy, whichever is sooner, the Village will provide a copy of the BWC Policy to the designated representatives of MAP. Upon reasonable advance request, the Employer and MAP will meet and negotiate any suggested revisions or modifications to the BWC Policy.
- 3. If the Village is required by the Act to temporarily implement the use of body worn cameras before the conclusion of any such negotiation, the BWC Policy shall be considered temporary, subject to modification by agreement or arbitration.
- 4. In the event that the parties are unable to reach agreement on the BWC Policy, the parties agree to submit the matter to impasse resolution procedures described within Section 14 of the Illinois Public Labor Relations Act, 5 ILCS 315/14.

C, CHAPTER 576
-14-
02/21/2027

{00747182.DOC v, 1 }